

Subd. 16. GAME AND FISH; FISHING; VETERANS' LICENSES. A permanent license to take fish shall be issued at the prevailing fee for an individual resident license to any Minnesota veteran as defined in Minnesota Statutes, Section 197.447, who has a 100 percent service connected disability as defined by the United States veterans administration, and furnishes satisfactory evidence of his disability to the county auditor or a subagent of the county auditor, acting under the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Section 98.50.

Approved April 23, 1971.

## CHAPTER 157—H.F.No.74

[Not Coded]

*An act relating to claims against the state; providing for payment of claims approved by the claims commission; providing for payment thereof; providing for waiver of immunity in certain instances and appropriating money therefor.*

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Minnesota:

Section 1. **CLAIMS AGAINST STATE; APPROPRIATION.** In order to carry out the recommendations of the claims commission as contained in its biennial report to the legislature covering claims considered, the claims approved and the awards made pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Sections 3.66 to 3.84, the appropriations contained in this act are made.

Sec. 2. **APPROPRIATIONS FROM GAME AND FISH FUND.** Subdivision 1. There is appropriated from any money in the state treasury credited to the game and fish fund, the sums of money set forth in this section to the persons named herein in full payment of claims against the state.

- |          |  |             |
|----------|--|-------------|
| Subd. 2. | Richard Anderson, Fosston, Minnesota. For losses sustained through error by conservation officer           | \$ 3,142.81 |
| Subd. 3. | Arthur E. Kemen, 214-4th Avenue, Madison, Minnesota. For land taken by the department of natural resources | 500.00      |

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

- Subd. 4. Carl Schaar, 8500-127th Street E., Hastings, Minnesota. For damages when drainage system was changed by department of natural resources \$ 500.00

**Sec. 3. APPROPRIATIONS FROM GENERAL FUND.** Subdivision 1. There is appropriated from any moneys in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sums of money set forth in this section to the persons named herein in full payment of claims against the state.

- Subd. 2. Donald H. Bruemmer, 40 North Service Drive, Red Wing, Minnesota. For damage to car stolen by students from training school at Red Wing, Minnesota. To be paid from unencumbered and unexpended balance of any appropriation to the department of corrections . 345.40
- Subd. 3. Benjamin Burton, Box 55, Stillwater, Minnesota. For injuries sustained while performing assigned duties at state prison 533.40
- Subd. 4. John Pittman, Box 55, Stillwater, Minnesota. For injuries sustained while performing assigned duties at state prison 1,040.13
- Subd. 5. L. P. Krebs, 2357 Carter Avenue, St. Paul, Minnesota. For dental expenses due to accident claimant's daughter had on university of Minnesota property 310.00
- Subd. 6. Village of Crosby, c/o Village Clerk, Crosby, Minnesota. For refund of money paid to state for old armory building 19,200.00
- Subd. 7. William Walter Schroeder, Box 55, Stillwater, Minnesota. For injuries sustained while performing assigned duties at state prison 866.78

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Subd. 8.	Bernard Delle and Ellery Stiles, Route 2, Twin Lakes, Minnesota. For crop loss when state agency raised water level in lake adjacent to property	\$ 4,000.00
Subd. 9.	Mr. and Mrs. Harrie Beek, Route 3, Luverne, Minnesota. For indemnity payment for sale of cattle which reacted to paratuberculosis test	519.96
Subd. 10.	Clarence W. Schuenke, Box 55, Stillwater, Minnesota. For injuries sustained while performing assigned duties at state prison	533.40
Subd. 11.	Gilbert Bentz, Maple Plain, Minnesota. For loss of cow injured during brucellosis test	375.00
Subd. 12.	Mrs. Mary D'Allesantro for Mary Louise D'Allesantro, 318-1/2 North First Street, Montevideo, Minnesota. For educational expenses under provisions of Minnesota Statutes 197.75, Subdivision 1	866.00
Subd. 13.	Mr. and Mrs. Vincent Livgard, 15305 Round Lake Blvd., Anoka, Minnesota. For money stolen by state ward	412.00
Subd. 14.	District Director of Internal Revenue, 316 North Robert Street, St. Paul, Minnesota. For refund of state taxes collected when federal tax lien was in effect	4,106.54
Subd. 15.	Eugene Frazier, 2810 Pleasant Avenue South, Minneapolis, Minnesota. For injuries sustained while performing assigned duties at state reformatory for men	1,324.39

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

- Subd. 16. Chock Construction Company, 921 First Avenue N. E., Little Falls, Minnesota. For refund of sales tax paid due to misinterpretation of sales tax law \$1,576.66
- Subd. 17. Helen Rose Daleen, c/o Samuel Saliterman, Attorney, 700 Foshay Tower, Minneapolis, Minnesota. For injuries sustained while performing assigned duties at women's reformatory 6,387.13
- Subd. 18. John A. Tabaka, Longville, Minnesota. For loss of cow due to brucellosis test 375.00
- Subd. 19. Alfreda B. Stubblefield, c/o John W. Thiel, Attorney, 300 Roanoke Building, Minneapolis, Minnesota. For refund of inheritance tax paid on proceeds of tax-exempt insurance policies 433.83
- Subd. 20. Vigilius Westlund, c/o Mae Dale, 2129 North Ferry Street, Anoka, Minnesota. For refund of maintenance money paid while confined in St. Peter state hospital when claimant worked full time without compensation 6,404.05
- Subd. 21. George W. Weckop, Route 2, Pequot Lakes, Minnesota. For loss of two calves following brucellosis test 300.00
- Subd. 22. Raymond L. Rosen, Box 55, Stillwater, Minnesota. For injuries sustained while performing assigned duties at state reformatory for men 728.43

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Subd. 23. Oscar Anderson, Minneota, Minnesota. For loss of cow following brucellosis test \$ 325.00

Subd. 24. Pine County, Pine City, Minnesota. For funds spent to apprehend and prosecute escapees from youth conservation camps. To be paid to Pine county sheriff's office 2,400.00

To be paid to Pine county attorney's office 1,860.00

Sec. 4. **APPROPRIATIONS FROM HIGHWAY AND RELATED FUNDS.** Subdivision 1. There is appropriated from any moneys in the state treasury credited to the trunk highway fund, or funds accredited thereto from highway patrol fines or other sources, the sums of money set forth in this section to the persons named herein in full payment of claims against the state.

Subd. 2. Raymond Oney, 7020 Claude Avenue, Inver Grove Heights, Minnesota. For damage to van due to negligence by highway department \$ 253.50

Subd. 3. Carroll Clow, c/o Richard S. Roberts, Attorney, 19 East Seventh Street, Morris, Minnesota. For property damage due to negligence by highway department 350.00

Subd. 4. Keith R. Moat, Route 2, Marshall, Minnesota. For theft of personal tools required for work with highway department maintenance crew 534.29

Subd. 5. Roy A. Bach, R. R. 1, Henderson, Minnesota. For replacement of drain tile damage during highway construction 1,430.00

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

- Subd. 6. Village of Belgrade, Belgrade, Minnesota. For funds spent to assist residents when homes and buildings filled with water because of improperly maintained highway culverts \$ 618.00
- Subd. 7. Mr. and Mrs. Earl J. Theisen, Route 2, Box 216, Sauk Rapids, Minnesota. For loss of well water when nearby springs were severed during highway construction 800.00
- Subd. 8. Ernest A. Coopman, Route 1, Mankato, Minnesota. For replacement of well destroyed by installation of drain tile along adjacent highway 500.00

Sec. 5. **WAIVER OF IMMUNITY.** Subdivision 1. The state hereby waives its immunity from suit so as to permit the claimants hereinafter named to assert a claim for damages in the courts.

- Subd. 2. Charles H. Lorenz, 205-4th Street, Winona, Minnesota

For alleged unlawful imprisonment. The issue to be determined by the court shall be whether there was sufficient credible evidence apart from the involuntary confession to prove by a preponderance of the evidence that claimant did commit either crime of which he was accused. If the court believes that there is credible evidence that he committed either crime, there will be no recovery. In any event, the damages shall not exceed \$20,000, which is hereby appropriated from the general fund in the state treasury to pay any judgment rendered against the state of Minnesota.

- Subd. 3. George Bozich, d/b/a National Travel Association, Inc., 11009 Johnson Avenue South, Bloomington, Minnesota

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

For damages sustained by alleged infringement of copyrighted material by the state. Claimant is allowed to bring action against the state in federal district court under authority of title 17 U.S.C.A., sec. 101, not to exceed \$5,000, which is hereby appropriated from the general fund in the state treasury to pay any judgment rendered against the state of Minnesota.

Subd. 4. Suit shall be commenced within six months from the effective date of this act by service of the summons upon the attorney general.

Sec. 6. The provisions of this act are effective immediately upon its enactment.

Sec. 7. Except as otherwise provided for in this act, no payment shall be made to any claimant until a full and complete release in a form approved by the attorney general has been filed in the office of the state auditor.

Approved April 23, 1971.

---

## CHAPTER 158—H.F.No.157

*An act relating to civil service; examination of applicants; amending Minnesota Statutes 1969, Section 43.13, Subdivision 2.*

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Minnesota:

Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 1969, Section 43.13, Subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. **STATE CIVIL SERVICE; BLIND APPLICANTS; EXAMINATION; ELIGIBILITY; TIME; PLACE.** The competitive examinations shall, after published notice, be open to all applicants who are citizens of the United States, who have been residents of this state for two years immediately preceding the date of examination, and who meet with reasonable standards or requirements fixed by the director with regard to experience, character, age, education, physical condition, and such other factors as may be held to relate to the ability of the candidates to perform with reasonable efficiency the duties of the position. No standards or requirements shall be fixed with reference to education or physical condition except such as relate directly to the duties of the office or employment to be filled. Persons under such physical disability as not to make them ineligible

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.